


QUEEN'S COUNTY. 

,' pea over the counties of K!ldare and Carlow, watered by the wind­
ing fheams of the Greece and the Barrow. 

IN one arm of the crofs is a {mall chapel, the place of interment 
for the Grace family. Engraven on a fquare copperplate is this 
epitaph. 

Nobilis ingenio, mitis, formoCa, pudica, 
Francifca exiguo bie cefpite teCta jaoes; 
Sed non tota: animus c:seli loea leta petivit, 
Solvere vinul' premia terra oequit. 
Q9icquid amor, unccra fides, pietafqac jabebant, 
Sedula fecifii, filia, fpoura, parens. 
Non luxus tibi mollis amor, non cura decoria, 
Unica cura inopes, et Deus unus amor. 
Religio fievit, 6eruot virtufque pudor<tue, 
Matribus exemplum, virglnibufque decus. 
Sheflieldus ilevit, pangens lachrymabile carmen, 
Q90d tibi perpetui pignus amoris erit • 
.l£ternum Berit, lucia przte[us et aurlr, 
Flere Deo vitam, oi putet efi'e nefa •• 
Concordos animas Chriftus revoeabit in unum, 
Pax ubi {aneb manet, dec dirimendus amor. 

D. Francifca Grace, alias Bagot, uxor ShefJield~ Grace obiit 3. die Mali, A. D. 174a. 
ztatis fu., 32. 

Oppofite is this infcription: 

Here 
Lyeth the body of 

Mrs. Martha Grace, 
Late wife of 

Mie. Grace, Efq. 
She was 

Religious witbout orientation, 
Pious without hypocnfy • 

. Friendly without &ttery ; 
To the diftrefi'ed ' 

A fupport. 
To the orpban! a mother:· 

E~ In 
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III her life, attended with many bleilings, 

Her death, with many tears. 

She was 

Faithful to her hufband, 

Tender to her children, 

Forgiving to her enemies. 

o paLfenger! how foon thou /halt refemble 

Her in her mortal part~ 
God knows! 

Do thou labour to ",femble her in that 
hich is ialltiom\. 

She lived, (he ditd, (he ran the happy race, 

-She won the glorious priu, immortal peace. 

- She died 

ABBE OF AGHAMACART. 

THIS church, founded about the year 550, is four miles wefr of 
Durrow in the barony of Upper O«ory. O'Dempfey ereCt d a 
prioryhete for regular canons, under the invocation of t. Tig mach. 
It was the cemetery of the Fitz Patricks, Barons of Upper O«ory. 

IN the 43d of Elizabeth, a grant wa made to Florence Fitz 
trick of this priory and its appurtenances; a the rectory ot 

Aghamacart, ~he tithes of Cowlhill u~ Cu11anhill, the Dominican 
monafrery of Aghaboe, the reCtory of Cowlkerie or Coolkerry, the 

ories of ghenmaghe, Aghtert, Cirke, or kirk, and Kelline or 
"~line. All thefe were part of the princely poffeffions of the Fitz 
tricks long befor~ the arrival of the Englifh, and beftowed on ,the 
urch by them. This noble family frill have the right of advowfon 

ghamacart, Cahir, K.illin , and Coolkerry; an ecc1efiafrical patri-
j. mony 







m~~y perhaps of unrivalled antiquity in any part of the King's do­
mmlons. 

. TH,E building and vaults were exten{ive, but now in ruin ; part 

of the walls of the chapel and an incunGderabl e portion ()[ t.he:: belfry 

remain: the gate at the entrance is an arch of frood workmanihip. 

The inhabitants relate, that a br ther of the priorYt who had no~ 

fubdued his pafflon by monaftic auficrity and macer, tion, became 

enamoured with a lovely nun: her tender heart felt hi attachment, 

~n~ repaid it by r ciprocal affcajon. An illicit conn xion could 
not long be concealed-time revealed the fatal fccret; the friar, to 

prevent die ignominy which his conduct merited, and to atone for 

bjs crjme, precipitated hilll1fdf from tbe top of the belfry and ex­

pired. The femalcs~ who tell th;s tale, draw a veil over the fate of 

~he frail lifter, and pretend to know nothin ' of he.r catafirophe. 

AGRAM !.CART pariili is the property of the Right H onourable 

the Earl of Portarlington, but the church, th,at of the Earl of Upper 

Offory. 

STRANCALLY CASTLE 

TANDS in the parifh f Kilcockan, on the Black Water, which 

is here of confiderable breadth, and male s a beautiful appearance, 

its lofty fides fuaded with woods forming mofr plcaiing land­

fcapes. 
THE cafi1e of Strancally is built on a rock directly over the 

river. A paffage of fome length and breadth is cut through the 

rock to the rivet', and was formerly ufed by the Earl of Defmond 

a a prifon. There is an hole cut through the rock in the man­

ner of a portcullis, down which he caft the dead bodies. A perfC/n, 

who 
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who had the good fortune to cfcape from this difmal pnfon, related 
to government the horrible pradices committed here, who ordered 

the cave and caftle to be demolifhed. The cave is laid open, 
If the caftlc blown up. the powder fplitting it from top to 

BALLAGHMORE CASTLE 

at the foot of the mountains that feparate the King's 
_Ult;;C;U'S Counties, and near the high road to Rofcrea, fro'll 

is diftant about fuur miles. It was built by Mae Guil 
or Fitz Patricks, ancient Princes of Offory, and was op. 

bounds that formerly divided North from South Munfter. In 
Captain Hedge~ who was in garrifon at Borros in Offory, 

Ballaghmore, which, after a flout refifrance, furrendered, 
he blew up fome ,Part of it, and £lled the intrenchments; as he 

as returning with his prifoners and booty, he was intercepted by a 
~q .. - .... of Irifh, who fell furioufly on him in the evening, refeued 

companions, and flew many of the party, fo that the remainder 
ditliculty reached Borros. This caftle a:nd a large trad: of 

f.,;',.,try is now the efiate of the Earl of Mountrath, whofe ancefiors 
confpicuous part in the wars of Ireland, and, as rewards for 

{emce , obtained Jiuge poffeffions in this county. 
Vie was taken from an original drawilJg, by Fifue{, in the 

of the Right HODOurable William Conyngham. 

ABBEY 
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ABBEY OF AGJ{ABOE. 

F the Life of St. Columba, written by Adamnan, be genuine, few 
e lefiafiical foundations can boaft an earlier antiquity than Agha­
b . In this author it is named Achetbou, and in Bifhop Otway's 

ifitatioJl book, in the epifcopal palace of Offory, AghcvoC!, Aghboy, 
Aghboe; ,aU corruptions from Achadhbo. in Irifh, the field of the cow, 
an appellation gi~en it from he remarkable richnefs of its paHures. 

__ ...:A:.::damnan places a Mooaftuy here in the 6th century, and makes 
annich its firft Abbot. This Cannich is the W clfu aint Canocus. 

~r Canice, mentioned by Girald 'Barry, in his WeHh itinerary. From 
the intimacy, of which many infrances are given by Adamnan, be­
tween Cannich and Columba, there is rea on to believe it was ori­
ginally a Culdean eftabldbment; and as the Auguftinians always 
fucceeded on the expuHion of the Culdecs, fo here, Ware tells us, 
the religiollS were regular Canons of St. Aufiin. 

THIS old cOQventual was changed into a Cathedral Church about 
the year 1050, wben the See of ffory was removed from Saiger or 
Seir Kiran, a village in the King's County, to Aghaboe. 'rhus the 
annals of Leinfter. under this year fay-" A Church was built in 
H Ach~dboe. and the fhrine of St. eanice placed in it. ,t This muft 
mean tbe; credion of the Cathedral, which, &ccording to the Vi6ta­
tlon boOk ' before mentioned, was removed from Aghaboe to Kil­
kenny the .a8 lIenry II. fo that it continued in the former place (ot 

132 year Durinc this period, the names of but two Bifhops arc 
prererved, O·Fogarty and O'Dullany or Delany; and this is a proof 
what little dependance is to be placed on our annals or legends (or 
clerical affairs antecedent to the arrival of the Engliili. 

THE wliter of thefe pages has been above twenty years Vicar of 
the 
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the parifh of Aghaboe, and is from circumftances enabled to give an 
exact account of the fabricks of both Cathedral anu Abbey. Of the 
former only the chancel remains, which {erves as the parifh Church. 
The eaft and {outh windows are pointed, and {eem to have been 
modernifed. The infide walls are adorned with niches, canopie , 
and concentric mouldings; al}d on the, north fide is a Gothic do , 
four feet high and two wide, and about three from the floor. W n 
the infidc is examined, there appears a little cell made in the thic 
nefs of the wall, capable of holding one perfon; it is arched over, 
and th~ ribs arife {rom four pillars, and on the weft fide is a frone 
{eat. This is a curious confdIion-box, into which the Priefr entered 
by the door, and in which he was invifible to the penitents. A c ... · - ­
cular aperture from it opend into the church-yard. The tower is 
on the north fide, and placed where the fcreen divides the nave from 
the chancel: it is an hexagon, and arched over, and from the wall a 
frame of mafonry rifes for holding the b 11. The moulding that 
adorns this , tower, reprefents the contour of the human body. 

ABOUT the year 1380, Florence Fitz Patrick, Baron of Upper 
otrory, founded ' a convent of Dominicans in Aghuboe. The church 
is one hundred feet long, and twenty-four wide. It has three win­
dow to the routh, and one at the eafr end. A t the {outh fide, Phe­
lan's Chapel fiands forward, and is divided from the Church by an 
arch rdling on a pillar of folid mafonry. In this oratory is a niche. 
wherein fiood the fiatue of St. Canice, the patron; and in the walls 
are inverted cones with eight groove for holy water. ' The larg ... 
quadrangle, m,onks cells and cellars were, not many years ago, de­
ftroyed by the facrilegious hand of the writer's prcdecetror. for the 
unworthy purpofe of inclofing a deme(ne. Such modem Goths 
bring an odium on their country. 

Et terram altricem fzvi execramur UIYffis. 

Tn II Vie , which repre(ents the fouth-taft afpect, was drawn 
by lieutenant Daniel Grofe, anno J 79~. 

MELI. 





MELIFONrr CASTLE. 

11iIlil~'l}.re, ancefror to the prcfent Marquis of Drogheda, 
nguifhed himfelf in an of Ireland in the 16th 

rewarded by Queen Elizabeth with a leafe of the 
of Melifont its appurtenances, which he made 

his principal efidence, bWlding cafrle ther~ for his ,greater fecurity, 
and alfo a cafrellatcd houfe, where his pofrerity remained, till the --• late Earl of Drogheda removed to MQnafrereven, now Moore Ab-
bey, in the CQunty of Kildare, the feat 'of the Jate Vifcouut Loftus, 
of Ely, which defcended to his lordfllip as heir to that family-

, MELIFONT Cafrle, feated on the bounds of the Engliih pale, was 
a great curb on the rcfrlefs and rebellious natives. In J 64 J. Lord 
Moore had a troop of fixty-fix hone at Melifon't, with which he 
went to Drogheda, to endeavour to fecure that town from the rebels. 
The latter, taking advantage of his abfence, fat down before Meli­
font on Sunday the .t4th of NOVC$J1ber, with J 300 foot, intending 
to furprife it. There were only t ent)f-four mu1ketecrs and fifteen 
horfemen in place, who, as long as their powder. lafred, made a 
brav~ de at length overpowered, the foot furrcndered on 

ut"lvo.LODCJ ColI Mac Brian Mac Mahon order d them aU 
gl'tl~~ the horfe vigoroully charged the enemy. and got 

rebels deftroyed and carried away of gooda 
.j~!~m~. ~OJlJ)t of two. thoufand pounds, and killed twenty­

~ .. r.:t. an, moft of whom they would not fuf-

~""J'.:IJI:' ~"" ~lIOtm-. eftatcs were fequefrered; but on the 10th 
year, it was ordered that his houfe at Melifont, 

F ~e 



the park with the deer therein, and 300 acres of land, in fuch places 
neJtt adjoining and lying clofe together as he fuould chufe, fuould be 
exempted from extents for the maintenance of himfe1f and family. 

THIS View was drawn by lieutenant Daniel Grofe, an no 1791. 

ENN S ABBEY. 

TUE long narrow windows, divided by !tone mullions, the delicate 
carving and other architectural ornaments, {peak the age and expence 
befrc;>wed on this beautiful Church. The Abbey was confrructed J.I' ~-­

B'40, by Oonagh C:1rbrac O'Drien, Prince of Thomond, for con­
ventual Francifcan friars. About uxty years after it was repair~d 

and adorned by one of the {arne family, who prcfented the Religious 
with croi'fcs, embroidered vcftments, cowls, bookcafes, and blue 
painted windows. 

So great was the de otion of the Princes of Thomond towards 
this foundation; that one of them, in 13 I I, beftowed the whole re­
venue of his principality for the fupport of this monafrery, and for 
enlarging and beautifying it; and in 1350, Pope Clement VI. granted 
it feveral indulgences. Letters w re encouraged and cultivated in 
this houfe: in £375, Edward Ill. granted his licence Marian Cur­
rydany, a brother, to go to Stralburgh, in Germati , to frudy.­
Friars of the ftria: obfervance {ucceeded the conventual. In 1577, 
the crown was in poi'fcffion of the fite of this III , a mill on 
be river Fergus, and the eland falmon wier, ith hQu{c and 

gardens in the town; and on the 1ft of Ii granted 
to William Dongan, Efq. 

TulS iew was taken from an originalAillMlrm.r.. br Pelham. in 
the collcdion of the Right Honourable gham. 







COUNTY OF KILDARE. 

C STLEDERMOT eRU C D ROU D TOWER. 

BEREVER we meet a round to r, we may be atrured an eccle­
nattical foundation aifted there antec dent to the arei val of the 
EngJifh. Tradition fays, St. Dierxnit had a hurch. r rather a 
monafiic Cell here i" the year 500: hi fefrival is celebrated, as the 
patron, the ~Iftoi June. The place as at firfr called Difeart 
Diarmuda; and after, for many years, Triftledermot. Here Cormac 

- l\iac CuiUenan received his educatio and wa here int rred in 938. 
About this time, it is probable, the Round Tower wa erected, and 
fome ages after the old Church. Tradition reports, that one of the 
fronc crotres in the cemetery was coeval wit~ the Tower. 

ON the arrival of the Engli1h, Henry II. granted O'Morthy, or 
O'More' country, the diftriCl in Nch Caftle Dermot frands, to 
Walter Riddlcsford, who built a caftle there from which the town 
takes it~ name. And in the reign of King John, the faid proprietor 
founded a Priory for crouched friars, which, at the diffolution, was 
given to Richard Keating. In U64, Richard de R upella, Lord 
Jufrice of I~land, Lords Theobald Botiller' and John ogan, were 
taken prifoQers by the Fitz Geralds of Trifiledermot, which fuews 
at once the weakne1S of Government and the power of this family 

that period. In 1302 a Monaftery for Conventual Francifcans 
was founded i this town by Lord Ophaley; in fourteen years after 
it was deftroyed by Bruce and his Scots, who carried away its books, 
veftments, aftd other facred oraaments and utenfils; but this facri­
lege was revenged by their defeat foon after. On the ~6th of Augufr 
1499, a Parliament was held here, when an ad was made for the 
nobility to ufe faddles: however, the natives retained their old cuf • 

. tom of riding without them, nor .two hundred years after did they 
Jay afide their old praCtice. 

F~ 
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ON the confiruction of the Caftle and Monafieries, Caftledermot 
became a market town, and is fuppofed to have been furrounded " 1 

with a wall, but no traces are now to be feen. The only ruins 
are thofe of the Caflle, Francifcan Friary, Round Tower, and 

Church. 
THIS View was taken by lieutenant Daniel Grofe, anno 179~' 

WICKLOW ABBE . 

THIS Monafiery was foundl":d in the reign of Henry III. by the­
O'Byrnes and O'Tooles, for Con ntual Francifcan Friars. It is 
fituated in the town. Here the Fitzgeralds in J 178, erected a {hong 
fortrefs, called the Black Cafrle. In 1301 it was taken and burnt 
by the lrifh. In J 533 the O'Byrnes fubmitted to Henry VIII. by • 
indenture, and granted him the town and caftle of Wicklow. 

IN 1642 Sir Charles Coote marched from Dublin to the relief of 
this town; the enemy, upon his approach, ~ed to the mountains. 

DIERMIT O'More was .the laft Warden of this friary, a leafe of 
which was made to Henry Harrington in the 17th of Elizabeth. 
The walls of this edifice frill remain, and are enclofed in gardens. 
:Much praife is due to the proprietor for the care taken of them. 

THIS View was taken from an original drawing, in the collection 
of the Right Honourable )'ngham, by T. G. Brien • 

• 
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FORT IN MARYBOROUGH. 

AN ad of the 3d and 4th Philip and Mary recites, that the countries 
of I,.eix, Slew marge, Otfaley, Irry, and Glenmalire, belong of right 
to their Majefries, but were of late wholly poffeifl:d by the O'Mores, 

• O'Collors, O'Dempfies, and o~her rebels, but by the induftrious tra-
• vail of the Earl of Sutrex, LQrd Deputy, were reduced to obedience, 

and their lands to the difpofal of tb4;ir Majefries, in fuch manner and 
fuch proportions, as by him 1han be thought proper. That for the 
better conferving and keeping thofe parts in civil government, it is 
cnaCted, that the new fort in Leix be called Maryborough; and that 
Leix, Slewmarge, Irry, and fuch portion of Glenmalire as is fituated 
on that fide of the Barrow, whereon Maryborough frands, be know.,. 
and called the Queen's County. ~ ./ 

A STRONG fortrefs was ereded bore to keep the country in Cub­
jedion, and a numerous garrieon placed in it. In J 648 i.t was in 
poffeffion of the confederate Catholics, but the year after it was 
taken by the Earl of Cafilehaven. In 1650 the forces of Parlia­
ment, under Colonels Reynolds and Hewfon, poffeffed themfclves of 
it, and levelled the works, leaving only a fmall ruin to mark tb~ 
place where they frood. ' 

THIS View was taken by l!eutenant Daniel Grofe, 1792. 

OF ME A'l'H. 

NEWTOWN ABBEY. 

A PR~OnY of regular Canons of St. Viaor was founded here in 
1206, by Simon de Rochefort~ Biiliop of Meath. He after con­

verted 
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vertcd the Church into a Cathedral, dedicated to St. Peter and' St. 
Paul Here were made by this Prelate, in 12 T 6, the remarkable 
CooftitutioDS "Which changed village bifbopricks into rural deaneries: 

canons of this {ynod are to be found in Wilkins's Councils. 
~HalOP Simon died in 1.2.24, and was interred in the: church. On 

of May, 1536, this houfe was fuppreffed by Parliament, and 
,.~itea to ing Henry VIII. The Prior fat in the upper houfe, as 

The remains of the large old Church frill exift, and 
them is an ancient tomb, {aid to have been placed there for 

ofKmg John. 
lew was Wecn by lieutenant Daniel Grofe, 179.2. 

TY OF MA YO. 

C XLE MORE. 

E family of Dillon, who l'0irc1fed large citates in this county, 
conftruded every where cafrles for their defence: this was one, dif­
fering very little from the reft. It is :fituated on a fmall eminence 
by the road ftde, and about a mile from the village of BaI1aghadir­
reen. The country people have demolifhed the walls and other 
parts to build their cabins: this pradice, if not prevented by land­
ords, bids fair in a fhort time to level moft of our old fortre1fes, 

hofe only memorial will be. found in this work: this alrc:ady"ha 
the cafe with many of them, even during the 1hort period of 

• publication. 

THIS View was taken by T. Cockings, 179 J . 
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